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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEOSKY INDIA LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

MRKS AND ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEOSKY INDIA LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICA>'s Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information other than the financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in annual report but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwiseappears to be materially misstated. 
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The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to 

report in this regard. 

Management's Responslbllty for the financlal Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responslblitles for the Audit of financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of suchontrols, 
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 
A" a statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable. 

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit, 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity, Cash Flow Statement and the Notes to Accounts dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account, 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate Report in "Annexure-B" to this report. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

There was no material impact of pending litigation which would impact its financial position as on March 31, 2025; 

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

There were no amounts, which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

The Company has not declared/paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance u/s 123 of the Act is not applicable to the company. 
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For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 

Based on our examination, which include test checks, the company has used accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transaction recorded in the software. Further, during 
the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature 
being tampered with and audit trail has been preserved by the company as per statutory 
requirement for record retention. 

Kamal Ahuja 
(Partner) 
M. No. 505788 

SAHE 

NEV DELHI) 
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Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 20, 2025 
UDIN: 25505788 BMJPWX 3506 



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OFNEOSKY 
INDIA LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements' sectlon of our 
report of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records shovwing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment, (including Right-to-use assets). 
(B) The Company maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets under 
development. 

(b)The Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency 
of verification of the Property, plant and equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. 

(c)The Company does not have any immovable properties (which are included under the head 
'Property, plant and equipment') and hence reporting under clause 3(A)0)(c) is not applicable. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipmentduring the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 
March31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) (a) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)a) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, in aggregate, at 
any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii) (a)(A) The Company has granted loan to its subsidiary in respect of which requisite information is 
given below. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee and security to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company 
has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. 

(B) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanation 
provided to us, the company has provided loan to its subsidiary. Detail of which is as under: 

Particulars 
Aggregate amount during the year 
-Throttle Aerospace System 
Balance outstanding at the balance sheet date 
- Throttle Aerospace system* 

A 

Cihatere 

Loan (Amount in INR) 

1,80,00,000 

Principal- 1,80,00,000 
Interest- 5,19,723 (Net of TDS) 



(b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not 

prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment 

of interest has not been stipulated. 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as 

at the balance sheet date. 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year. Hence, reporting under 

clause 3(iü)(e) is not applicable. 

() The company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loans either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to Promoters, related parties during 

the audit period. 

iv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has opening balance of loans 

to parties covered under Section-185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, where provisions of the 

same are complied with. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the 

Order are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section 

(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. 

Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, as applicable, 

to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee's State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and 
Cess and other statutory dues are in arrears, as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six 

months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, as at March 31, 2025, there are no amount payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax which have not 

been deposited on account of any dispute. 

vüi) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 
1961). 

ix) (a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority: 
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(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company applied 

the term loans taken during the year for their intended purpose. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term 

basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) Since, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet 

the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, accordingly reporting under clause 

3(ix)(e) is not applicable to the company. 

() The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

x) (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and do not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the 

provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 
3(«)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the period covered by our audit. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT 
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

lc) As informed, there is no complaint received from whistle blower by the Company during the year 
(and upto the date of this report), and hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) is not applicable to the 

company. 

xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the 
Order are not applicable. 

xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is in 
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable Ind AS. 

xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit system 
and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

(b) Since, internal audit is not applicable to the company as per Section-138 of Companies Act 2013, 
hence reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) is not applicable. 

xv) In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or 
persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act. 
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xvi) (a) ln our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)la), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(ld) of the Order is not applicable. 

xvi) The Company has incurredcash lossesRs.3,88,33,633.74during the financial year covered by our audit 
and has incurred cash losses Rs.2,24,94,358.37in the immediately preceding financial year. 

xvi) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the company during the year. 

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as 
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

Xx) The provision of Sec 135 of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company, accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) is not applicable. 

xxi) As per section 129 of Companies Act 2013 and Ind-AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statement' 
provisions is not applicable to the company at the time of preparation of financial statement. 

For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 

NEV DELHI) 

Kamal Ahuja 
(Partner) 
M. No. 505788 

Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF NEOSKY 

INDIA LIMITED, ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(0) under 'Report on other Legal and regulatory requirements' sectlon of our 

report of even date) 

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of NEOSKY INDIA LIMITED ("the Company") as of 

and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting (IFCoFR) of the company of as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company's 
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of india (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit ofIFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCOFR and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
efectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's IFCOFR. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Finanial Reporting 

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the çompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made ontly in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Fnancial Controls over Finandal Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that 
IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company 

has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MRKS And Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja artereo coounta 
(Partner) 

NEV DELHI 

M. No. 505788 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 20, 2025 
UDIN: 25SoS 788 BMJPNX 3S06 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Balance Sheet es at 31 Mar 2025 
AIl amount m R 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equpment 

(b) Right of use 
(c) Intangble Asscts Under Development 

(d) manc1al assets 

Investnents 
loans and advances 

Other fnanc1al assets 
(c) Other non current asscts 

Other Assets 
NonCurrent tax asscts (net) 

Current assets 
(a) linancal assets 

Thousands, unless otherwse stated) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 

Investments 

Trade Recevables 

Loans and advances 

Other nancial Assets 

Other Asscts 

Equity 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

TOTAL ASSETS 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial hab1lities 
9 leasc habilities 

h) PrOvisOns 

c) Other non-current liablities 

Current liabilities 

(a) Fnancal labl1tics 
() Borrowings 
(u) Lease lhabilities 

(m) Trade payables 

Total outs tanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstand1ng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

(v) Other financial habil1ties 

(b) ProvisIons 
(c) Other current liabilities 

TOTAL EQUIIY AND LIABILITIES 

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

P'artner 

For MRKS and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

I-RN No. 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja 

Membersh1p No. 505788 
Place : New Delhu 

Date: 2o-S-25 

ASSOCZ 
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5 

10 

11 

12 

13 

) 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

17 

20 

21 

18 

Manoj Goyal 
Director 

DIN 09840224 

As at 
31 Mar 2025 

Place: ew Delh1 

Significant accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 

Date: 20o-S-25 

Chief Executive Ofticer 

4.313. 26 
748.61 

50,106.04 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 20-S-2S 

2.00E0M),(0) 

2.665.71 

39.72 

1,415.64 

2,59,288.98 

2.36-4.73 
1,237.43 

10,886.52 
18,519.72 

4.656.14 

37,664.54 
2,96,953.52 

1,500.00 
1,07,721.51 
1,09,221.51 

1.329.82 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

1.329.82 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalleti 

1,59,432.50 
799.50 

7,960.14 
15.423.90 

5.82 

2,776.26 
186,402.20 
2,96,953.53 

L08 

As at 

31 Mar 2024 

Amit Jain 

4.442.85 

45.06).63 

2, M),(MX) G) 

1020.0) 

689 42 

2,51,221.90 

2,987.51 
558 81 

I.048.99 
5.645.52 

7.873.97 

18,114.80 
2,69,336.70 

1.500,00 

1,48,374.34 

1,49,874.34 

1.163.42 

1,163.42 

99.639.02 

0.40 

6,196.66 

9.481.04 

5.3 

2,976.32 

1,18,298.94 
2,69,336.70 

D°ector 

DI\06802414 

Place: New Delh1 

Date20s-25 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

State ment of profit and loss for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(Al amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othenvise stated) 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 
rher income 

Expenses 
Cost ot material consumcd 

Emplovee benefits expenses 
Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisatton epense 

Other expenses 

Loss be fore tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Loss for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 10) 
Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted (Rs.) 

For MRKS and Associates 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja 
Partner 

Date 

This is the statemnent of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date. 

Membership No. 505788 
Place : New Delhi 

20-S- 25 

Note 

OASSO 

NEVE DELH)t 

lartered Account 

23 

24 

25 

26 

28 

29 

Manoj Goyal 
Director 
DIN-09840224 

Place : New Delhi 

Date: 20-S -

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2025 

Signifcant accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalle ti 
Chief Esecutive (Officer 
Place : Bengaluru 

24,047.08 

Date : 20-S-2S 

2,667.13 

26,714.21 

5.524.80 

35,592.52 
8,916.84 
2,130.38 

15.518.58 

67,683.12 

(40,968.91) 

(40,968.91) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

316.08 

316.08 

(40,652.83) 

(273.13) 
(273.13) 

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2024 

11,547.72 

1,994.42 

13,542. 14 

Amit Jain 
Director 

DIN-06802414 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 

2,708.33 
19,539.41 

4,977.72 
963.90 

8,811.04 

37,000.40 

(23,458.26) 

(23,458.26) 

242.66 

242.66 

(23,215.60) 

(156.39) 
(156.39) 

20-S-2S 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 
(Al amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othewise stated) 

Revenue 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Expenses 
Cost of material consumed 

Employcc bencfits expenscs 
Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 

Loss before tax 

Tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Loss for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (Face Value Rs. 10) 
Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted (Rs.) 

For MRKS and Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja 
Partner 

Place: New Delhi 

S ANC ASSOC 

Membership No. 505788 

Date : 20-S-2S 

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date. 

Note 

NEV DELHI) 

hartered CCountan 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

Manoj Goyal 
Director 
DIN-09840224 

Place : New Delhi 

Date : 20-S 

For the vear ended 
31 Mar 2025 

Significant accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalleti 

24,047.08 

Chief ENecutive COfficer 
Place : Bengaluru 

2,667.13 

Date : 2 o-S-2S 

26,714.21 

5,524.80) 
35.592.52 

8,916.84 

2,130.38 

15,518.58 

67,683.12 

(40,968.91) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(40,968.91) 

316.08 

316.08 

(40,652.83) 

(273.13) 

S-25P 

(273.13) 

For the year ended 
31 Mar 2024 

cAnha 

11,547.72 

Amit Jain 
Director 
DIN-06802414 

Place : New Delhi 

1,994.42 

13,542.14 

2,708.33 

19,539.41 
4,977.72 

963.90 

8,811.04 

37,000.40 

(23,458.26) 

(23,458.26) 

242.66 

242.66 

(23,215.60) 

(156.39) 
(156.39) 

Date : 2o -S-2S 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U6210ODL2021PLC386780) 
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Loss before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation cxpense 
Provision for gratuity/ leave encashment 
Provision for Trade reccivables 

Interest income 
Finance Cost 

Profit on sale of investments 

Amortisation on Right of l'se Asset 

Operating loss before working capital changes 

Movement in working capital 
Movement in other financial asscts 

Movemncnt in loans/advances 

Movement in non current assets 

Movement in trade receivables 

Movement in other assets 

Movement in other financial iabiities 

Movement in other liabilitics 

Movement in trade and other payables 
Cash flow used in operating activities post working capital changes 
Income tax refund received/ (paid) (nct) 
Net cash used in operating activities (A) 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of fixed assets (including capital intangible asscts under development) 
Profit on sale of investments (net) 
Investment in Mutual Funds (nct) 
Movement in fixed deposits (net) 
Interest received 

Net cash used in investing activities (B) 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Pavment of lease lhability 
Finance Cost 

Proceeds from current borrowings (including interest) 
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements, 

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date. 

For MRKS and Associates 
Chartered Accountan 
FRN No. 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja 
Partner 

Place: New Delhi 

EY DELH) 

Membership No. 505788 

artered 

Date: 20 -5-25 

SsOC 

AccoU 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Manoj Goyal 
Director 

DIN 998441224 

Place: New Dlhi 
Date 
20-5-2 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalleti 
Chicf l:secutive Officer 

Place : Bengaluru 
Date 20-5-25 

For the year 
ended 

31 Mar 2025 

(40,968.91) 

1,381.77 
482.80) 

3,735.8/) 

(657.41) 
8,916.84 

(111.52) 
748.61 

(26,472.02) 

(1,645.71) 
(18,519.72) 

(39.72) 
(8,976.80) 
3,217.83 
5.942.86 

(20X0.06) 
1,767.16 

(44,926.18) 
(726.22) 

(45,652.40) 

(6,288.59) 
111.52 

1,048.99 

(678.62) 
657.41 

(5,149.29) 

(801.33) 

(2.81) 
50,983.05 
50,178.91 

(622,78) 

2,987.51 
2,364.73 

Amit Jain 
Director 

DIN06802414 

Place : New Delhi 

Date: 2o-S-2S 

For the year 
ended 

31 Mar 2024 

(23,458.26) 

963.) 

619.70 

(36, 27) 
4,977.72 
(114.25) 

(17,047.46) 

(4,511.52) 
(1,628.04) 
(2,326. 15) 
1,063.57 

858.63 

(23,590.97) 
(260.64) 

(23,851.61) 

(19,513.35) 
114.25 

(45.05) 
(0.59) 

36.27 

(19,408.47) 

(4,977.72) 
47,315.02 
42,337.30 

(922.78) 
3,910.29 
2,987.51 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: 
U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othenvise stated) 

A Equity share capital (refer note 15) 

Particulars 

Equity share capital 

Other equity (refer note 16) 

Particulars 

|Balance as at 1April 2023 

Profit/(loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income; net of 
income tax 

Movement during the year 

Balance as at 
1 April 2024 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income 

Movement during the year 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2025 

For MRKS and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN No. 023711 N 

Kamal Ahuja 
Partner 

Membership No. 505788 

Place : New Delhi 

Chartere 
DELHI) 

Date : 2 O-S-2S 

Balance as at 

Countants 

1 April 2023 

500.00 

Securities 

premium 

1,99,000.00 

Significant accounting policies and accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements 

1,99,000.00 

1,99,000.00 

Mano Goyal 
Director 

Movement during 
the year 

DIN-09840224 

1,49,500.00 

Place : New Delhi 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Securities 

Balance as at 31 

Mar 2024 

150,000.00 

Reserves and surplus 

Employee's stock 

premium reserve options outstanding 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalleti 

Chicf Exccutive Officer 

Date : 2co -S-2s 

Amit Jain 
Director 

DIN-06802414 

Movement during 
the year 

Place : New Delhi 

Retained earnings 

Date: 2o -S -2S 

(27,410.07) 
(23,458.26)| 

242.66 

(50,625.66) 

(40,968.91) 

316.08 

(91,278.49) 

Balance as at 

31 Mar 2025 

1,50,000.00 

Total 

1,71.589.93 

(23,458.26) 
242.66 

1,48,374.34 

(40,968.91) 

316.08 

1,07,721.51 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Mar 2025 

Al amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

2 

Corporate Infornmation 

Nature of Operations 
Neosky Inda Limted ("the Company") was incomorated on 20 September 2021 as a wholly owned subsdiary of Rattanlndha Enterprses I.imited 
(formerh knoun as Rattanlnda Infrastructure Lmited) 

The Compan s prmarlk in the of manufacturing and trade of Umanned vehicle ("UAV") Systems, which can be used for photpraphic, 
mamtenance, sunveillance and many other appications. lhe ancillary business of the company is to provle drone mapping & survey services and drone 
Dilot tranme servces which evoke around the mam busness of manufactuing and marketing of the UAV systems. 

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS 
The financal statcmcnts of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as notificcd under secton 133 of the 
Compancs .Act 2013 read wth the Companes (Ind1an Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Mmistry of Corporate Affairs (AMCA)). The Company 
has uniforml apphed the accoumting pohcies durng the periods presented. 

The fnancial statements for the nenod cnded 31 Mar 2025 wCre approved by the Board of Directors on May 20, 2025. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 
a) Overall consideration 

The fnanc1al statements have been prepared using the sgnnficant accounting poicies and measurement bases summarised below. These were used 
throughout all penods prescnted in the fnancial statements, cxcCpt where the Company has appied certain accounting pohcies and exemptions upon 
transition to Ind .AS. 

Basis of preparation 
The fnancial statements have been prepared on gong concem basis under the historical cost basis, unless and otherwise indicated. 

b) Revenue recognition 

Sale of Drone, Sale of LDrone Mapping c Surey Series and Remote Pilot Training Senices 
Revenuc from contracts with customers is recogmised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects 
the consderation to which thc company cxpects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The company has generally concluded that it is 
the princpal in its revenuc arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. The Company 
apphes the revenuc recognition criteria to cach separately identifiable component of the sales transaction as set out below. 

Amounts discloscd as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and voume rebates, value added taxes, 
goods and service tax (GST) and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Revenue is not recognised n instances where there is uncertanty with regard to ultimate collection. In such cases revenue is recognised on reasonable 
certa1ntr of collection. 

Iuterest lncome 
Interest income is record�d on accrual basiS using the cffective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Durdend lncowe 

Dividend ncome Is recognised at the time when right to receive the paynent is established, which is generally when the shareholders approve the 
dividend. 

c) Borrowing costs 
Borrouing costs include interest and amortisat1on of ancillary costs incurred to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Costs 
n connection wth the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss over the tenure of the oan. Borrowng costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of 
actrvities relatng to construction/ development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost of the assets. 
Any income carned on the temporary deployment/ investment of those borrowings is deducted from the borowing costs so incurred. Capitalisation of 
borrowng costs 1s I and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the 
qual1fving assets is interrupted. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. 

d) Property, plant and equipment 
Recognitiom and initial weasurement 

Properties. plant and cquipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation cntena are met 
and d1rectl atributable cost of bringng the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arrnving 
at the purchase pnce. Subsequent cOsts are ncluded in the asset's carrying amount or recogn1sed as a separate asset, as approprate, only when it t 
probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. AIl other repair and mantenance costs are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss as ncurred. 

Subsequent weasnrement (depreaalion and nseul lives) 
Depreciation on property, plant and cqupment is provided on the straught-lne method, computed on the basis of useful hves prescribed in Schedule | 
to the Conpanes Act, 2013: 
Propertics plant and cquipnent acqured and put to use tor the pupose of the Project are capitalised and deprecatwn thereon is ncluded n capital 
work-1-progress tll the Project is ready for ts ntended use. 
The ressdual values, usetul laves and method of deprecatwon are reviewed at each funancal year ud and adjusted prospectivel, te approprate 

De-eogmlhon 

An item of propert, plant and cqupment and any sgm1ficant part initally recom1sed is derecoguised upon d1sposal or w hen no future economc 
benefits are expected from its use or d1sposal. Auy gam or loNS ar1suy on de-recogniton of the assct (cakculated as the dtterence between the iet 
disposal proceeds and the carrymg anount of the assct) s ncluded in the ncome statement when the asset is derecognised. 

GASSOC 
NEV: DELHI) 

hartere Account 



Neosky India Limited (CIN :U62100DL2021PLCS86780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Mar 2025 

\l amont m Rs. Thousands, unless othenuse stated) 
Intangible Assets under development 

T:xpenditure on rescarch actv1tcs IS recognscd as an cxpense m the perod m whch t s mcurred. 

ln mtemalk venerated ntanrble assct ar1smy from development (or from the devekopment phasc of an mternal procct) is recopnsed if, and onk if, all 

of the tollowng have been demonstrated: 

"the techncal feas1b1hty ot compktmy the ntang1ble asset so that it will be avatlable for use or salk 

"the mtenton to complete the intannbk asset and use or scll it: 
"rhe abilhty to usc or sell the ntangble assct: 

"hou thc mtang1ble asset will pencrate probable fhuture economc beneits, 

the avaulabihty of adequate techical, fmancal and other resources to complete the devekopment and to use or scl the intanp1ble asset, and 

"the ab1htr to measure rehabl the cxpcnd1ture attributable to the ntanp1ble 

lhe amount nitallv recogmiscd for ntemally generated ntangible assets is tlhe sum of the expenliture incurred fron the date when the ntangible asset 
first meets the ecomitn cntena hstecd above. IWhere no mtenallh generated intang1ble asset can be recopnised, devekbpment expend1ture is recogsed 

in the statement of profit and oss m the peod m which it is imcurred. 

Subscqucnt to mitial recogniton, mtemallk-gencrated mtanrble assets are reported at cost les8 accumulated aHortisateon and accumubted irmoairment 

kosses, on the samc bas1s as intangibk assets that are acquired separatcly. 

Amortsaton of the asset begins when devekpment is complete, and tlhe asset is available for use. It is amortised over the perod of cxpected future 
bencfit. Amortisatkon cxpense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

During the perod of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually:. 

Intangible asscts 
Reoguiton and imital measuremeut 
Intanmble asscts are statcd at their cost of acquis1tion. The cost compriscs purchase price, borrowing cost if capital1saton criteria are met and d1rectly 
attnbutable cost of brngng the assct to its working cond1tion for the intended usC. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arrivng at the 

Durchase pnce 

Subsegnent measurrment (amortisation) 
The cost of cap1talhzed sofware is amortized over a period in the range of three to five vears from the date of its acquis1ton. 

g) Impairment of non-financial assets 
At cach reporting datc, the Company asscsses whether there is any indication bascd on internal/external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such md1caton Cxists, thc Company estmates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the assct or the recoverable amount 
of the cash generat1ng unt to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the 
reducton is treated as an mpainent loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indicatons that 

an umparment loss previouslk recognised may no longer exist. An impaiment loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount 

exceeds 1ts carring amount. 

h) Finan cial instruments 
Tuital rognition and measurement 
Fmancial assets and fnancial habilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and 

e fiuancial instrument is designated to be measured at fair value through profit are measured initally at fair value adusted for transaction costs, unless the 

or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. 

asset during its devebpment. 

Financial assets 

Sabsequent weasarement 
Financial assets at amortised cost -The financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following condtions are met: 
" The asset is held withina business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

. Contracual erms of the asset grve ise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prncipal and interest (SPP) on the principal 
amount outstandmg. 

After mtal measurement, such frnancial assets are subsequently measured at amortiscd cost using the ctfective interest ate (ElR) method. All other 
debt instruments are measured at a1r Value through ch other comprehensive income or Fair value through proit and koss based on Company's business 

model. All investments n mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss (\"TPL) 

Deruguiton of finamaal assets 
A fnancal asset is prunarily de recognised when the rghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has trnsterred ts rnghts 

[o receve cash flows from the asset 

Financial liabilities 

Sabsequent weasurcment 
Subscquent o mital reCoguiton, these lhabilties are measured at amortiscd cost usng the effective mterest method. These lablties unclucde borowmys 
and deposits 

Dr ogution of fiwanual labiltes 

A financal lhabiltr s de-recoised when the oblyaton under the hablty is d1scharged or cancelled or expires. T hen an eNistug fuancal hablhty s 
replaced by another from the same knder on substantally dafferent terms or th terns of an exstug kabilty are substantall mohfied, such an 
eNchange or mod1tficaton is treated as the de recopnton of the orynal habilty and the recoguiton of a new lab1ty. The d1tterence un the respectuve 
carryumg amounts Is reCon1sed n the statement of prott and oss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
I'mancal assets and fuancal labltss are offst and the net amount s reported uu the balance sheet utf there is a currenth cntorceabk kgal ngh1 to 
offset the recogu1sed amounts and there is an ntenton to sette on a nct bas1S, to real1se the assets and settle the habltcs sunultaneousl 

ASSOC 
(NEV DELHI) 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Mar 2025 

Al anount n Rs Thousands, unless otherwise statcd) 
i) Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 

The Comnam has accounted for its subs«1ares and assOCIates, omt ventures at cost in ts financCal statements in accordance wth Ind \S 27. Separate 

Imancal Statemcnts Proft/ koss on sale of mvestmcnts are recogniscd on the date of the transactkon of sale and are computed wth reference to the orignal cost of the 

nvestment sokd. 

i) Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance wth Ind AS 109, the Company apphes exprcted credt loss (ECL) model for measurement and recogn1ton of nparment loss for 

fnanc1al asscts camed at amort1scd cost. 

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash fows that are due to the Company m accordance with the contract and all the cash ows that the 

Company cxpects to receve. When estimafng the cash tlows, the Company cons«ler 

" All contractual terms of the fmanc1al assets (nchud1ng prepayment and extenson) over the expected hfe of the asscts. 
"(ash Aows from the sale of collateral bcd or other credit enhancements that are mtepral to the contractual terns. 

Other finamtal assels 
For recogn1ton of mpament loss on other fmancal assets and risk Cxposure, the Company determ1nes whether there has been a sugnnficant mcrease m 

the credi nsk smce ntal recogniton and if crdt nsk has merrased sygnuficantly, ife tume impairment loss s prvaded oherwse provdes kor 12 
months expected credt losses. 

k) Inventories 
Inventones are valocd at the ker of cost demved on weghted average basts and the net reakvable value after provxdmg for obsolescence and othet 
loxses, where consdered nccessar:. (iost nchdes all charges in bringing the gxods to the pont of comsumption, mchudmg octron and other eves, transt 
insurance and receving chargcs. 
Net reahsabk vahe is the est1mated selng prce m the ordnary course of business less cstimatcd costs of completon and estumated necesary costs to 
make thc sake 

I) Income Taxes 

Tax expense reCognsed m statement of profit and bss comprses the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recogn1scd in Other Comprehensve 
Income ("OCI) or d1rectk m equty. 
Curent ncome tax is measurcd at the amount cxpected to be paid to the tax authorities in acordance with the Income Tax Aet, 1961. Curent mcome 
tas relat1ung to stems recogm1scd outsde statement of profit and loss is recognised outsde statement of profit and loss in OCI or cquity dependng upon 
the trcatment of underlvmg item. 

Deferred mcome taxes are cakculated usmg the labihry method. Deterred tax labihties are generally recognised in full for all taxable temporary 
dfterences Deterred tas asscts are recogn1sed to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss, nuscd tax cred1ts or deductible temporary 
dfference wall be uthsed aganst furure taxable income. This is asessed bascd on the Company's forecast of future operatng results, adusted for 
syuhicant nn taxablke income and expenses and spec1fic limits on the use of any unused tax loss or credst. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are te 
asessed at each report1ng date and are recognised to the estent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset te 
be recovered. 

Deterred tax asscts and habilties are measured at the tas rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is real1sed or the labilaty is setled. 
based on tax rates (and tas laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reportung date. Deferred tas reating to items recog1sed outsde 
statement of profit and loss is recognised outsde statement of profit and loss in OCI or cquity depend1ng upon the treatment of underly ing item. 

m) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equvalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term hghly hqusd investments (original 

maturty less than 3 months) that are readiy convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an insignuficant nsk of change in value. 

n) Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits 

Defincd contrbution plans 
The Company makes contribution to the statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident F'und and \Miscelaneous Pruoviskons Act, 
1952 whch is a defned contribution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognised as an expense in the perod n which the services are rendered. 

Dgined benit plans 
Gratuty s st-empkoymnent benefit and is in the nature of a defned benefit pan. The labil1ty recogn1sed in the fnancal statements n respect of 
ratuty is the present value of the defined benefit oblyation at the reporting date together with adustents for unrecognized actuaral gains or ksses 
and past service costs. The defned bencfit oblyation is calculated at or ncar the reporting date by an independent actuarr using the projected unit credt 
actuaral metho 

Actuaral gans and kosses aris1ng rom past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are credted or charged to the statement of OCl n the year 
m whch such rams or kosses are determned. 

Otber lowg term enplaye beuefits 
Iaabibty n respect of compensatcd abscnces becoming due or expected to be availed withn one year from the balance sheet date is recogised on the 
bass of und1scounted value of estmated amount requred to be pad or estumated value of benefit espected tuo be availed by the empkovees. Lablty n 
respect of compensated absences becoming duc or expected to be avaked more than one year after the balance sheet date is estmated on the basts oe an 
actuaral valuaton perfoned by an umdependent actuary using the prorcted unit cred1t method. 
Actuaral grans and kosses aris1ng from past experence and changes m actuaral assumptons are charged to statement of protit and koss m the year m 

which such gans or kosses are deternued. 

Short terw enployee benclits 

ENDensc m respect of other short term benctits is recogniscd on the bas1s of the amount pal or pavablke tor the perkad durng whch servces are 

rendercd by the cmpkoyee. 

S AN OASSO 

(NEV: DELH): 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Signifcant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 
All amount n Rs. Thousands, unless othen1sC statcd) 

o) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilitics 
Provisions arc recomized ony when thcre is a prescnt oblyation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable cstimate of the amount of oblyaton can 
be made at the reporting date. Thcsc cstmates are revxewed at each reporting date and adusted to reflect the current best estrnates. Provsons are 
d1scounted to their prescnt values, where the time vahe of money is materal. 

Contingent habihr is disckoscd tor: 
" Possible obhgatons whch will be confrmed onk br future cvents not wholly withim the control of the Company or 
" Present oblgatons arisng from past cvents where it is not probable that an outflowv of resources will be required to settle the obhgation or a rehable 
cstmate of the amount of the obhaton cannot be made 

Contingent assets are not recogniscd. However, when nflow of economc bencfit is probable, related asset is disckoscd. 
p) Earnings per share 

Basc camings per share 1s calculated by dvd1ng the net profit or loss for the period attributable to cqutty sharchoklers (after deduct1ng attributable 
taxes) by the weghtcd average nmber of cquity shares outstanding during the perkod. The weighted average number of equty shares outstandng 
dung the period is adusted for events inchud1ng a bonus issue. 
For the pumosc of calcuating dhuted eam nfecte f all diutiyve potential equity shares 

ct profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the perod are adjusted for 

g) Lease 

A lease is defincd as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of tme n exchange for 
considcration 

Classification of leases 

The Company enters into lcasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, includung, but not l1m1ted to, 
transfer of oNTership of keased asset at end of lease tern, Iessee's option to extend/purchase cte. 
Recognition and initial measurement 
At leasc commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use assct and a lease liability on the baance sheet. The right-of- use asset is measured 

at cost, which is made up of the inital m I measurement of the leasc habilht, any inittal direct costs incurred by the Company, an cst1mate of any costs to 
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any leasc payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any 
incentives reccied) 

Subsequent measurement 
The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-ine basis from the lease commencement date to the carlier of the end of the useful hfe of 
the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease tern. The Company aso assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. 

Ar lease commencement date, the Company measures the leasc liabily at the present value of the lease payments unpad at that date, discounted us1ng 
the intercst rate mphcit in the lease if that rate is readdy avadable or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the 
measurement of the leasc labilhty made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and varable payments based on an index or 
rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the iability will be reduced for payments made and increasecd for interest. It is e -measured to reflect any 
reassessment or modiication, r if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease lhability is re-measured, the correspondng 
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset. 

The Company has clected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lease lhabilaty. 
the pavments in relation to these are recognised as an cxpense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the ease term 

Signifcant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenscs, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. 

Szgmifiant management jndgements 
The followng are sgnificant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant ettect on the 
fuancal statements. 

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can bc recognvcd is based on an assessment of the probabilaty of the 
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilzed. In add1ton, sign1ficant judgement s required in assessng the impact of any 
legal or economic lhmnts or uncertainties under the relevant tax juriscliction. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets - The evaluation of apphab1lity of ind1cators of impainent of assets requires assessment of 
severale: I and nternal factors which coukd result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

Recoverability of advances/receivables - .\t cach balance sheet date, based on histonical default rates observed over expected hfe, the manarement 
assesses the expccted creda loss on outstandumg recevables and advances. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO0) - Management's estunate of the DBO s bad on a number of critical underung assumptons such as stanlar 
rates of ntaton, medcal cost trends, mortal1ty, d1scount rate and anticpaton of ftuture saary mcreases. Varaton m these assumptons may 
synifscantl unpact the DBO amount and the annual defned benectu expenses. 

Fair value measurements - Managemet apples valuatuon technques to determne the tar value of fnancal unstrunments (where actve market quotes 
are not avaable) and non-fuancal asets. 1hus vokes deveopng cstumates and assumptons cons1stent wuh how market particpants woukl prce the 
instrumen. Management uscs the best uutormaton ava1lable. Est1mated tar values may vary trom the actual prces that woukl be acheved m an aun' 
lenvth transacthon at tlhe reportuuy date. 

Provisions - A cach balance sheet date on the bass the management juygnent, changes un tacts and kyal aspects, the Coupany assesses the 
requrement of proNISOns. lHowever the actual future outcoC may be ditterent from ths judyement 

Taxes 

Deterred ax assets are recogn1scd tor unused tax kosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable protit wll be avalable agaunst which the kbsses cam 
be uthscd. Synticant managemet judgenment s requred o detenne the aout ot deterred tax assets tlat can be recogused, based upon the lkch 
tmng and the level of future taxablk protts together wth tuture tax plannuig strateyus 

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets 

lanagement revews ts estunate ot the usetul lhves of deprecable/ anortsabke assets at cach reportug date, based on the espected uthty of the assets. 
ncertamtics n these estunates relate o ech1cal and ccoOK obsolescence that ay chanye thc utlaty of certam otiware, customer relatwnshps, II 

cquipment and other plant and cqupment. 
UASS 

O 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DI 2021 PLCIOS70) 
Signiicant aconunting poiies and notes to the fancil stutements for the vear ended 31 Mar 2025 

{Al amount in Rs. Thousands, unlers otheraise stated 

4. Propety, plant and equipment 
Detaile of the coinpany's proerty, plant and equpent and their carying amounty arr ax follow: 

Groas carrying mount 
Balance as at 1 Aor 2023 
Additions 

Disposals/ Adustments 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 
Addtions 

Dsposals/ Adustrnents 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2025 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as a IApr 2023 
Chace for the ear 
Diposals Adhustments 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 
Chage for the year 

Disposals/ Adustnnts 
Ralanee as a 1 Mar 2025 

Net carming amount 
Balance s at 31 Mar 2025 
Balance at 31 Mar 2024 

Ha). Right of use 
Righi-of-us 
Particular 

Gros carying umount 
Balance 01 Apr 2024 
Addit1ons 

Balance as at 31 Mr 2025 

Aecumulated aorination 
Buance as at 01 Apr 2024 

Amortisation for the vr 
Balancc as at 31 Mar 2025 

Net carrying mount 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2u25 

Balance &s a 31 Mar 2024 

S. Intanible AAaets t 'nder Development 

Goss carvingR mount 
Balance es a lApr 2023 

Additio 
DispossBs/Adustnents 
Balance as a 31 Mar 2024 
Addatuons 

Disposals Adustnents 
Balance as at 31 Mar 2025 

Aocumulated depreciation 
Balance s at l Apr 2023 
Charr for the ar 
Dsposals Adjustunents 
Balance aS a 31 Mar 2024 

Change fot he yas 
Dsposals Adjustnent: 

Balance as at 31 Mar 225 

Net caring amount 
Balance as a 31 Mar 2025 

Basances 31 Mar 2024 

Lntangble Ascte Under Development -Ageing echedule 

Poyect n Progess 
Project Teuoranly suspended 

Project iun Prugres 
Pojpct Tenpoaaly suspended 

Rant and 

Machinery 

1,229.69 
515.81 

1,745,51 
10000) 

2,745.51 

18.30 

8°,98 

106.28 
13250 

28.7R 

2,306.7300 
1,609.23 

RPTO Hving Hed 

1,497.23 
1.49723 

748.61 

748.61 

748.61 

Amount 
3.685.42 

17.381.21 

45,069.63 
5036.41 

50.106.04 

S0.106.0 
45, 069.60 

Len than l yor 
5036.41 

lcs than I year 

17,364.21 

Fumiture and 
Fxtures 

7,04 

567.12 

574.16 
245.93 

820.09 

0.30 

41.11 

41.50 
76.01 

1-2 years 

I17.51 

702.5000 
S02.66 

Total 

1,497.23 
1.497.23 

748.61 

748.61 

748.61 

12 year 
45,069,63 

7,685.42 

Computers 

2,648.66 

3.247.77 

S90.11 

3,247.77 

580.11 
778.57 

1,367.67 
1,082.59 

2,450.26 

797.5100 

1,880.10 

23 yea 

2-9 years 

(oMce Fquipment 

447,10 

447.10 

625 

453.35 

ar 

56.34 

56.24 

067 

146.91 

306.4400 
390.86 

More than J yeare 

More than 3 years 

ASSO 
NEV DELH) 

Total 

arteredAccounte 

3,885.39 

2119.14 

6,014,54 

1,252.18 

7,266.72 

063.00 

1,571.60 
1.381.77 

2953.46 

4,313.26 
4.42.85 

31 Mar 2025 

Toal 
M,106.04 

31 Mar 2024 

Total 

45,069.63 



Neosky India Limited (CIN : U62100DL02IPLC386790) 
Significant accounting poiies and notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Mar 2025 

A amount n Rs Thosasands, unkss othe rss stated 

6. Investments- Non Current 

Investments n Throttk Aerosnar Sstems Prnate Lumted 

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherise stated) 

Loans and danes 

Related partes 
Ohes 

Empkorers 

& Other fnancial assets 

Senn Deposts 
Prmscs 

Others 
Amount reconeabk from 

Related partes 

Less: proTSon for doubtful cenzbks 

9. Other assets 

aptal advances 

Advances mEabik 
Ralances ath stautor authontes 

Ind1ret Tax 

GST recoerabk 
Advance Other Statuto Dues 

Prepand expenses 
Prepasd-N Rakesh SD 4/c 
'nbied evenu 

10. Casb and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 

Ralances sItt baniks 
Current axcounts 

1. Othe bank balances 
Faxed deoosts onanal manur1n for more rhan 3 monrhs bur kss rhan 12 monrhs 

12. Investments 
Investments un urual Fund 

31 Mlarch 224 812834) unsts un ICICI Prudentul 
Laquid Ovemght Fund -Diect Plan Growth 

31 Mar 2025 

Non-current 

31 Mar 2025 

958 25 

177 50 

Non-current 

2.665.75 

2,665.75 

31 Mar 2025 

31 Mar 024 

39.72 

39.72 

31 Mar 2024 

Non-Curent 

KS ANC ASSO 

31 Mar 2024 

NEV: DELHI 

1.0 

artered Accounte 

L.020.00o 

L.020.00 

31 Mar 2025 

2,/444i 
209.000.00 

31 Mar 225 

18519 72 

18.519.72 

31 Mar 2125 

31 Mar 2025 

2,46831 

Curent 

2187.73 

0.10 

31 Mar 2025 

4,656.14 

31 Mar 2024 

Current 

1.464.73 

31 Mar 2025 

2364.73 

31 Mar 224 
Current 

31 Mar 2025 

123743 

1,237.43 

31 Mar 024 

200 0050 

31 Mar 2I24 

4,661 23 

3.21274 

7.873.97 

31 Mar 2024 

208751 

298751 

31 Mar 2024 

558 81 

558.81 

31 Mar 2024 

l.048.99 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: 62100DIL.2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3I Mar 2025 
(Al amount in Rs 1housands, unless otherwe state) 

13. Trade Receivables 

Trade renabke 

( 

Conssdered good 
Consdecred doubtful 

|nbilkd Revenuc 

les Provtson for doubtful dehbts 

Ageing of Trade receivables 

31 Mar 2025 

(Ol'ndsputed Trade mcenables -considered good 

(m 'ndsputed Trade Recenables -whch have 
Stgn1tcant ncreasc in credt rsk 

(m'ndsputcd Trade Recenatbkes - credit impaired 
(N Disputed I rade Recenables-conssdered good 
() D1sputed Trade Recervabkes - whch have 
sgn1fkant increasc in credit nsk 

Disputed Tade Recenables credit impaired 

less Pronzson for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed 
+ Undrsputed 

Total 

31 Mar 2024 

cons1dered good a Und1sputed Tradc receabics 

nd1sputedTrade Recenabkes -whach have 

sgnufcant 1ncrease n cred1t rsk 

nd1sputed Trade Recevabies - credit impaired 
N Disputed Trade Recenables-cons1dered good 

(1) Disputed Tade Recenabkes -whch have 
sIgnifcant ncrcase n credt nsk 

( DIsputed Trade Recenables - cred1t impaired 
Less ProvisIon for bad and doubtful debts (Disputed 
+indrsnuted 

14. Non Current tax assets (net) 
Adance ncome tax (net of provisson) 

Cnbilled 

Dues 

Unbilled 

Dues 

No 

Due 

Not 
Due 

Less than 6 
months 

10,72072 

10,720.72 

Less than 6 
months 

5499. 72 

5,499.72 

6 months 

-I year 

40.00 

6 months 

(Thes spar bas leen inlentionalh kft blamk) 

20.00 
20.00 

-l vear 

AND, 

145.80 

145.80 

ASSOC 
(NEV DELHI) 

arlered: ccounta 

1-2 vears 

3.861.60 

3,715.80 
145.80 

1-2 years 

31 Mar 2025 

10,720.72 
3.90160 

14.622.32 

3.735.80 
10.886.52 

2-3 

2-3 

years 

years 

31 Mar 2025 

1,415.64 

1,415.64 

3I Mar 2024 

5645 52 

5.645.52 

5.645.52 

More than 
3 years 

More than 
3 years 

31 Mar 2024 

689.42 

689.47 

Total 

10,760.72 

3,861.60 

3,735.80 
10,886.52 

Total 

5.645.52 

5.645.52 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(Al amount in Rs. Thousands, unlcss otherwisc statcd) 

15. Equity share capital 
Authorised capital 
150,000 (FY 2024: 150,000) cquity shares of Rs.10 cach 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital 
150,000 ((y 024: 150,000) cquity shares of Rs.10 cach fully paid up 

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Equity shares at the beginning of the ycar 

Equity shares at the end of the year 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 
Ratanlnda Enterprises Limited and its nominces 

d) Shares held by promoters at 31 Mar 2025 

Promoter namne 

Rartanindia Enterprises Limited and its nominees 

d) Shares held by promoters at 31 Mar 2024 

Promoter name 

Rattanindia Enterprises Limited and its nominees 

16. Other equity 
Retained earmings 
Opening balance 
Add : loss for the vear 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income 
Closing balance 

Security Premium 
Security Premium on Equity Shares 
Closing balance 

31 Mar 2025 

No, of shares 

1.50,000 

Other Equity Total 

1,50,000 

(Tbis spa.e bas been intentionallhy left blank) 

Amounts 

1.500,00 

No, of shares 
31 Mar 2025 

1,500.00 

b) Rights/ restrictions attached to cquity shares 
The Company has only one class of cquity shares with voting ights, having a par value of Rs. 10 per sharc. Each sharcholder of cquity shares 

1,50,000 

by Board is entitled to one votc per sharc held. Each sharc is entitled to dividend, if declared, in Indian Rupces. The dividend, if anv, proposed 
of Directors is subjcct to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mecting, except in the case of interim dividend. In 

the event of iquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Sharcholders. 

% holding 

100% 

No. of shares 

1,50,000 

No. of shares 

1,50,000 

31 Mar 2025 

NEV DELH) 

1.500.00 

Kartered' ccountan 

1,500.00 

1.500,00 

1,500.00 

31 March 2024 

No. of shares 

50,000 
1,00,000 

1,50,000 

No. of shares 

31 March 2024 

1,50,000 

% of total shares 

100°% 

% of total shares 

100 

31 Mar 2025 

(50,625.66) 

(40,968.91) 

31 Mar 2024 

316.08 

(91,278.49) 

1.99.000.00 

1,99,000.00 

1,50.O0 

1,07,721.51 

1,300.00 

1.500.0) 

1.500.00 

Amounts 

1,500.00 

1,500.00 

% holding 

100 

% Change 

during the year 
300% 

% Change 
during the year 

31 Mar 2024 

(27,410.07) 

(23,458.26) 
242.66 

(50,625.66) 

1.99,000,00 

1,99,000.00 

1,48,374.34 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policics and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(Al amount n Rs lhousands, unless othcwisc statc) 

17. Lease liabilitics 

Lcasc iabihty 

18. Provisions 

Provision for emplovee benefits 
Povison for gratuity (unfunded) 

19. Borrowings 
Unsecured 

Inter-comoratc denosit (with interest) from hold1ng company 

20. Trade pavables 

Toal outstand1ng ducs of micro cntepnses and small entepnses 
Total outstand1ng dues of creditors other than 
mmero enterprises and small entempriscs 

SMH 

u Disputed ducs - MS\I 
m Others 

v)Disputed due: 

|Total 

MSME 

1 Others 

(1N)Disputed 

|Total 

dues 

31 Mar 2025 

(n Disputed dues- MSME 

Duc to employees 

Others 

Others pavables 

31 Mar 2024 

21. Other current financial liabilities 

-Others 

22. Other current liabilities 
Statutory dues 

Advance from customer 

Other current hab1hties 

Unbilled 
Dues 

Unbilled 
Dues 

Payables 
Not Due Less than 

1 year 
4.08 

5,451.23 

Payables 
Not Due Less 

5.455.31 

year 

0.40 

3 223.61 

31 Mar 2025 

Non-current 

3,224.01 

31 Mar 2025 

Non-current 

1.122.43 

arie 

207.39 

(Ts stae bus been intenttonall, left blank) 

1,329.82 

1-2 years 

568.70 

568.70 

1.266.07 

1.706.98 

2,973 

NEV DELHI) 

31 Mar 2024 

Non-current 

31 Mar 2024 

Non-current 

arlered Accoun 

874.92 

28850 

1,163.42 

2-3 years 

233.24 

.706.98 

31 Mar 2025 

Current 

1.940.21 

709 50 

70).50 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment 

More than 

years 

31 Mar 2025 

Current 

2.96 

2.86 

5.82 

31 Mar 2025 
Current 

1.59432.50 
1.59.432.50 

31 Mar 2025 
.08 

7.960.14 

7.964.22 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment 

More than than 
1-2 years 2-3 years 

years 

31 Mar 2025 

2490.30 

12.933.60 

15,423.90 

31 Mar 2025 

2.453.20 

208.90 

31 Mar 2024 

Current 

|14.10 

31 Mar 2024 

Current 

2,776.26 

Current 

31 Mar 2024 

174 

9.639.02 

9,639.02 

3 76 

31 Mar 2024 

Total 

650 

6,196.66 

6,197.06 

Total 

0 40 

6,253.17 
1.706.98 

7,964.22 

4.08 

0.40 

4,489.68 
1,706.98 

6,197.06 

31 Mar 2024 

260.63 

9,220.41I 

9,481.04 

31 Mar 2024 

2,679.42 
208.90 

88.00 

2,976.32 



Neoskv India Limited (CIN:U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policics and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(AIl amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

23. Revenue from operations 

Income from Drone Suner & Mapping Services and Remote P'ilot Training Services 

Sale of lDrone and lccessories 

24. Other income 
Intercst on fixed deposit accounts 

Interest on Securitr Deposits 
Income Tax Retund 

Poit on sale of nvestments 
Inteest on Inter (Cogorate Deposits 

Other income 

Unclaimd balances and excess provisions written back 

Business Support Senices 
Miscellenous Income 

25. Cost of material consumed 
Purchase of Drone and Accessories 

26. Employee benefits expenses 
Salaries and wages 
Contribution to provident and other funds 

Provision for gratuity 
Provision for compensated absences 

Staff welfare expenses 

27. Finance costs 

Interest on 

Inter corporate deposits 
Other finance costs 

Interest on TDS 

Interest on Other T'axes 

Lease Rental 

28. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation on 
Property, plant and equipment (refer note 4 & 5) 

Amortisation on Right of Use Asset 

(lhis spue hus been intentionalh left blunk) 

S ANC ASSO 

NEV DELHI 

ered Account 

31 Mar 2025 

17.236.46 

6,810.62 

24,047.08 

4L68 

38.26 

25.76 

111.52 

577.47 

72.19 

1,800.00) 
0.25 

2,667.13 

31 Mar 2025 

5,524.80 

5,524.80 

31 Mar 2025 

33,868.88 

1,066.02 
564.82 

92.80 

35,592.52 

31 Mar 2025 

8,810.43 

2.81 

103.60 

8,916.84 

31 Mar 2025 

1,381.77 
748.61 

2.130.38 

31 Mar 2024 

7,45105 

4,096.67 

11,547.72 

36.27 

17.15 

114.25 

1.800.00 

26.75 

1,994.42 

31 Mar 2024 

2,708.33 
2,708.33 

31 Mar 2024 

17.803.22 

951.04 

530.34 

91.58 

163.23 

19,539.41 

31 Mar 2024 

4.976.69 

0.13 

0.90 

4,977.72 

31 Mar 2024 

963.90 

963.90 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mar 2025 

(All amount in R. Thousands, unless othervise stated) 

29. Other expcnses 
Rent 

Rates and taxes 

Legal and professional charges 
P'rinting and stationery 
Postage and Courier Charges 
Research expenses 
Traveling and convevance expenses 
Advertisement expenses 
Sofware cxpensCS 
Repairs and maintenance - others 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 
Electricity Expenses 
Payments to the auditors* 

Bank charges 
Membership and Subscription Fces 
Consumables 

Drone Suvey & Mapping Services 
Provision for Doubtful Trade receivables 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

*Note: The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and Service tax) 
Statutory audit 

Others 

Total 

(Tbis space bas been intentionaly left blank) 

NEV DELHI) 

Chartere cCounta 

31 Mar 2025 

1,139.13 

109.78 

4,340.53 
264.23 

21.76 

347.63 

1,928.06 

804.10 

4.00 

20.61 

97.23 

40.00 

22.54 

1,191.86 
59.56 

195.00 

3,735.80 
1,196.76 

15,518.58 

40.00 

40.00 

31 Mar 2024 

1,519.75 

42.93 

4,423.38 
104.49 

9.82 

280.53 

769.23 

305.01 

4.60 

38.25 

6.12 

57.26 

40.12 

49.98 

309.10 

53.62 

796.85 

8,811.04 

40.00 

0.12 

40.12 



28. 

Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amount in Rs. Thousands, umless otherwise stated) 

Defined benefits: 
Provision tor unfunded gratuity pavable to cligible employees on retirement/ separation is based upon an actuarial 

valuation as at 31 March 2025. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee 

compensation The commitments are actuartaly deternined tusing the Projected U'nit Credit Method' as at the year end. 
Gains/losses on changes in actuarial assunptions are accounted for in the other comprehensive income/ Capital work-in 
progress, as applicable and as iderntified by the management of the Company. 

Other long term benefits: 
Proviston tor untunded compensated absences payable to eligible employees on availment/ retirement/ separation is 
based upon an actuarial valuation as at the yvear ended 31 March 2025. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, typically, are 
rears of service and emplovee compensation. The commitments are actuarially determined using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method' as at the vear end. Gains/ losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted for in the Statement of 
protit and loss/ Capital work-in-progress, as applicable arnd as identified by the management of the Company. 

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of gratuty and 
compensated absences and the aounts recognised in the financial statements for the year 31 March 2025: 

Particulars 

Liability recognised in the Balance sheet: 
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of 
the vear 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gains) /losses 

Present Value of obligation at the end of the 
year (as per Actuarial valuation) 

Expenses during the year 
Current service cost 

Interest Cost 

Actuarial (gains) / losses 
Component of defined benefit cost charged 
to statement of profit and loss / Capital 
work-in-progress 
Re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations: 
Actuarial (gains) / losses 
Component of defined benefit cost 
recognised in other comprehensive income/ 
Capital work-in-progress 

Actuarial (gains) /losses on obligation 

Particulars 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in 
demographic assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/koss on arising from change in 
financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in 
experience adjust1nents 
Total 

31 Mar 2025 

876.65 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

500.68 

MA 

64.14 

(316.08) 

1,125.39 

500.68 

32.46 

64.14 

564.82 

(316.08) 

31 Mar 2025 

(348.54) 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

(316.08) 

31 Mar 2024 

NEVE DELHI) 

Kartered Accou 

588.98 

487.11 

43.23 

(242.66) 

876.65 

487.11 

43.23 

530.34 

(242.66) 

31 Mar 2024 

18.37 

(261.04) 

(242.66) 

Compensated absences 
(Unfunded) 

31 Mar 2025 

292.26 

135.89 

19.09 

(9.82) 
(227.18) 

210.24 

135.90 

19.09 

(227.18) 

(72.19) 

6.48 

31 Mar 2025 

(233.66) 

31 Mar 2024 

(227.18) 

202.90 

185.83 
16.79 

(2.22) 
(111.04) 

292.26 

5.71 

Compensated absences 
(Unfunded) 

185.83 

(111.04) 
16.79 

91.58 

31 Mar 2024 

(111.04) 

(116.76) 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

The actuarial valuation in respect of commitments and expenses relating to unfunded gratuity and compensated absences 

are based on the following assumptions which if changed, would affect the commitment's size, funding requirements and 

expenses: 

(a) Economic Assumptions 

Particulars 

Discount rate 

Expected return on plan assets 
Expected rate of salary increase 

(b) Demographic Assumptions 
Particulars 

Retirement Age 

Mortality Table 

Ages 

-Upto 30 Years 

- From 31 to 44 Years 

Above 44 Years 

(c) Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit obligation 

Particulars 
a) Impact of the change in discount rate 
i) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 
ii) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 

b) Impact of the change in salary increase 
| i) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 
i) Impact due to decrease of0.50% 

(d) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 

The employer's best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning after the Balance 
Sheet date, towards gratuity and compensated absences is Rs. 734.39 thousands and Rs. 226.62 thousands respectively. 

Particulars 
Less than 1 year 

Year 1 to 5 

More than 5 vears 
Total 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

31 Mar 2025 31 Mar 2024 

(75.46) 
82.23 

MA 

81.82 

(75.79) 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

31 March 2025 
2.96 

112.43 

1,010.00 
1,125.39 

S ANC ASSO 

NEV DELH) 

(70.94) 

rtered Accounta 

78.81 

78.60 

(71.40) 

31 Mar 2025 

60 Years 

100% IALM 

(2012 - 14) 

Withdrawal Rate 

() 

31 March 2024 
1.74 

31 Mar 2025 

6.99% 

34.06 

NA 

7.00% 

840.85 

876.65 

3 

Sensitivities due to mortality &c withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to 
rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy 
are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement. 

2 

1 

(13.45) 
14.74 

14.63 

(13.48) 

Compensated absences 
(Unfunded) 

31 Mar 2025 

31 Mar 2024 

31 March 2025 
2.86 

7.22/% 

NA 

43.57 

700% 

163.82 

31 Mar 2024 

210.25 

60 Years 

100% LALM 

(2012 - 14) 
Withdrawal Rate 

(%) 

31 Mar 2024 

Compensated absences 
(Unfunded) 

3 

2 

(20.35) 
22.23 

1 

22.14 

(20.42) 

31 March 2024 
3.76 

18.36 
270.14 

292.26 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 

Significant accounting poicies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othernvise stated) 

Particulars 
Expected next year 

29. Financial Instrument: 

(i) Fair Value hierarchy 

(1) 

(tü) Financial instruments by category 

30. Financial risk management 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments. 

Fnancial assets and funancial liabilties measured at fair value in the staterment of financal position are grouped 
nto three levels of a fair value hie rarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observabilsry of sgnsficant 
inputs to the measurement, as follows: 

Particukars 

Financial instrumnents by category 

Fiaancial Assets 

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is detcrmincd using 
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entiy 
spec1fic cstimates. 

Investment 1n equity share of 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
inctuded in level 3. 

subsidary 
Investments in mutual funds 

All Financial Instruments i.e. Cash & cash equivalents and financial iabilities are measured at amortised cost. 
except mutual funds which are measured at fair value. 

Trade Receivables 
Cash and cash cquivalents 
Other bank balances 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other funancial labilities 
Total 

Particulars 

Opening balance as on 01 April 2023 
Cash Flows 
Receipt of borrowing(net) 

31 March 2025 

Paymen of lease sentals 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

(ü) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from Financing Activity 

Non-Cash 
Interest Acuued 

803.48 

Fair value adjustmnent 

31 March 2024 
734.39 

Closing balance as on 31 March 2024 
Cash Flows 

FVTPL 

31 March 2025 

FVOCI 
Amortiset 

COst 

200,000.00 

10,886.52 

2,364.73 
1,237.43 

i8,519.72 
2,665.71 

31 March 2025 

159,432.50 
7,964.22 

15423 90 

Compensated absences 
(Unfunded) 

235,674.1t 1,048.99 

182,820.62 

1,048.99 

31 March 2024 

FVTPL FYOCI 

Borrowing 

371.82 

50,500 0X) 

44,660.0) 

31 March 2024 
226.62 

4,479.02 

99,639.02 

Lease 

Liabiliy 

Amortised 
COst 

2,00,000.00 

5,645.52 
2,987.51 

558.81 

1,020.00 
2, 1o, 2tt.84 

99,639 02 
6,197.06 
9,48104 

1,15,317.12 

Total 

50,500.00 

44,660.00 

4,479.02 

99,639.02 

(NEV: DELHI) 

Chartere iccounta 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting poicies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othervise stated) 

Receipt of borrowing(net) 
Payment of Inrerst 
Payment of lease rentals 
Non-Cash 
Interest Accned 
Addition of new lease 
Fair Value adjust1nent 

(iüi) Leases disclosure: 

Closing balance as on 31 March 2024 

Right of use 
2Ssets 

Green field Land 

Right-of use 
2ssets 

Greenfield Land 

agset 
Right-of use 

No of right-of Range of 

Green field Land 

use assets 

leased 

1 

The Company has entered into lease agreement with Rakesh.N (Sub-licensor) for the use of licensed Greenfield Iand for 
carrying business for a term of 24 months. which has been considered as finance lease as per INID AS 116. The Lease 
agreement is ralid from 15-04-2024 to 14-04-2026. 

Carrying 
1 April 2024 

The table below describes the nature of the Compan's leasing activities by typc of ight-of-usc asset recognised on balanice slieer: 

amount as on 

b) Additional infumatiun on the right-of-use assets by class of aSsets is as follows: 

Carrying 

IÁpril 202Z3 

remaining 

amount ag on 

term 

12 months 

Additions 

1,497.23 

Average 
remaining 
lease term 

Additions 

12 months 

Depreciation 

7-48.61 

55,525.00 
(t479.02) 

No of 
leases 
with 
extensio 

Depreciation 

options 

566.39 

8,181.12 
159.432,50 

Deletion Carrying 
amount 

as on 

No of No of 
leases leases 
with vith 

purchase variable 
options payment 

s linked 

31 March 
2025 

748.61 

Deletion Carrying 

(801.33) 

amount 

1,497.23 

as on 

103.60 

31 March 
2024 

799.50 

55,525.00 

to an 

(4,479.02) 

index 

(801.33) 

566.39 
1,497.23 
8,284.71 

160,232.00 

No of 
leases with 
terminatio 

n options 

NEV: OELH) 

hartere Accounta inta 

1.00 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amournt in Rs. Thoususds, unless othenvise stated) 

) Lease liabilities are presenred in the statement of financial position as follows: 

Particulars 

Current 

Non-current 

Total 

March-2025 
Particulars 

Lease payments 

Net present 
values 

d) The undiscounted maturity unalvsis of lease liabilitics is as follows: 

March 2024 
Particulars 

Lease payments 

Net presemt 
values 

Particulars 

Depreciation 
expense on 

cigbt-of-usc 
assets 

31-Mar-25 

Interest expense 
on lcasc 

liabilities 

799.50 

Expense relating 
to short-tem 

799.50 

leases (included 
in other 

expenses) 

Less than 1 

year 

837.90 

837.90 

Less than 1 

year 

The following are the amounts recognised in profir or loss: 

31-Mar-24 

) The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ? 1497.23 dhousands in 31 March 2025 (R NIL in 31 March 20249). 

31-Mar-25 

748.61 

1-3 year 

103.60 

15 year 

More than 3 

years 

More than 
years 

31-Mar-24 

Total 

837.90 

837.90 

Total 

arte rlercd fccoun 



Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting poicies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless othcrvisc statcd) 

(iv) Risk Management 
The Company is exposed to rarious risks in relarion to financial instruments. The main types of risks are credir risk 
and liquidity risk. The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed arc descried below: 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the isk that a counter party fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. (Credit risk arises fron 
cash and cash equivalernts & loans. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is inited to the carrving 
anoust o isancial assets recognised at 31 March, as summarised below: 

Particulars 
Investment in equitr share 
Investmcnts 
Trade Receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Total 

Liquidity Risk 

31 Mar 2025 

Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other financial lrabilities 
Total 

31 Mar 2024 

1 Non-derivatives 
Borrowings 
Trade Pavables 

The credit nsk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligble, since the counterparties are reputable banks 
with high quality extemal credit ratings. 

Other funancia! kabilities 

The Company's management considers that all of the above fnancial assets that are nor impaired and/ or past due 
for each of the above asscts reporting dates under revicw are of good credit quality 

Total 

Less than 1 
year 

The tables below analyse he Company's financial labilities into relevant maurity groupings based on their 
contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities. 

159,432.50 

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash lows. Balances due within 12 months 
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

7,964.22 
15,423.90 

182,820.62 

Less than 1 

ýeat 

99,63).02 
6,197.06 

31 March 2025 
200,00.(00 

9,481.04 

10,886.52 

115,317.12 

2,364.73 

1-5 year 

1,237.43 

1-5 year 

18,519.72 
2,665.71 

235,674.11 

31 March 2024 
2,00),(M%).() 

More than 

years 

1,048.99 

More than 5 
years 

5,645.52 

NEV: DELH: 

2,987.51 

artered iccounte 

558.81 

1,020.00 
2,11,260.83 

Toaf 

159,433.95 
7,964.22 

14,789.46 
182,822.07 

Total 

99,639.02 
6,197.06 
9,481.04 

115,317.12 



Neonky India Ldmited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLCI86 780) 
Significant accounting poicies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Al amount in Rs. Thousamds, unless othenvise stated) 

31. Capital management 

The Company's capital management objectives are : 
) To erisure the Comipany's ability to continuc as a going oncemi 
() To proride an adequate returm to shareholders 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as 
presented on the face of balance sheet. 

Managenmcnt assesses the Company's capital rcquirements in order to maintain an cfficient overall financing 
structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Companv's 
various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital stnucture and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in cconomic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, retum capital to 
shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 

The amount managed as capital by the Company for the reporting periods under review are summarized as follows: 

Particulars 

Short-tem borowings 
Total borrowings 
Jess: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Net debts 

Total equity (9) 
Net debts to equity ratio 

31 March 2025 
159,432.50 

1,59,432.50 

2,364.73 
1,237.43 

155,830.34 
109,221.51 

142.67% 
) Total equity includes capital and all reserves of the Company that are managed as capital. 

31 March 2024 

99,639.02 
99,639,02 

2,987.51 
358.81 

96,092.70 
49,874.34 

64.12% 

NEVE DELH) 
rtered A cCountans 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN : U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

Name 

Throttle Aerospace 
Svstems Private Limited 
Throttle Aerospace 
Systems Private limited 

Throttle Aerospaco 
Srstems Pivate limitcd 

Throttle Aerospace 
Svstems Private ILimitcd 
Throttle Acrospace 
Svstems P'rivate I imited 

Throttle Aerospace 
Svstems Pivatc Limite 

Throttle Aerospace 
Svstems Pivate limited 

Throttle Aerospac 
Srstens Private I imied 

Throttle Aerospace 
Srstems Private limited 

Fellow Subsidiary 
Cocoblu Retail Limited 

Cocoblu Retail lLimnited 

Limited 

Year 

Ended 

Rattanlndia Power 
Limited 

31-Mar-25 

31-Mar-25 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-25 

31-Mar-24 

31-Mar-25 

Reimburse 
ment of 

31-Mar-24 

general 
expenses 

received 

133.83 

743.05 

Reimburse 
ment of 

general 

expenses 
made 

1065.47 

55.31 

Short 
term 

borrowin 

gs taken 

-

Sale of 
Goods 

-

Enterprises over which holding company's Kev Management Personnel have significant influence 
Rattanlndia Power 

-

Interest 
expense 

borrowin 
gs taken 

(NEV DELHI) 

arlered Accoun 

Business Inter 

Support Corporate 
Services Deposits 

Expenses Given 

Inter 

Corporate 
Deposits 
received 

back 

-

-

Interest 
Income 

on ICD 

given 

Repaym 
ent of 

securi 
Deposit 

1,000.00 

Purchas 
e of 

Goods 

2.325.00 

20.96 

Business 

Support 
Services 
Income 

30000 

Commner 
cial 

Training 

Coaching 
Service 

Income 

135.4) 

Misc 
Incomne 

146.67 

Surface 

Surveying 
& Map 
Making 
Services 

10,660.24 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

(All amount in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

33. Earnings per Share: 

Particulars 

Loss after tax 
\Weghted average number of Equity Shares used in 
computing Basic carnings per share 
Weighted ave rage number of Bquity Shares used in 
computing Diluted carnings per share 
Nominal Value per Equity Share -(Rs.) 
Basic carnings per Share - (Rs.) 
Diluted earnings per Share - (Rs.) 

34. Foreign Currency Expenditure: 

Particulars 

Goods/Material Purchased for R&D purpose* 
Technical Consultancy 

Soffware Expenses 
Consumables 

35. Effective tax reconciliation 

Particulars 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 
Domestic tax rate 

Expected tax expense [A] 

Adjustment for deductible expenses 
Deferred tax asset not recognized 
Earier years tax adjustments (net) 
Total adjustments (B] 

Actual tax expense [C=A+B] 
Tax expense comprises 

Current tax expense 
Earlier years tax adjustments (net) 

Tax expense recognized in Statement of profit and loss (D] 

For the year ended 
31 March 2025 

(40,968.91) 

(This spae has been intestinally left blamk) 

1,50,000 

1,50,000 

10.00 

(273.13) 

(273.13) 

For the year 
ended 

31 March 2025 

For the year 
ended 

78.34 

6.49 

31 March 2025 

(40,968.91) 
26.00% 

(10,651.92) 

10,651.92 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

10,651.92 

(23,458.26) 

1,50,000 

1,50,000 

NEV DELH 

For the year 
ended 

Wartered Accounta 

10.00 

(156.39) 

31 March 2024 

1,539.87 

(156.39) 

For the year 
ended 

m 

31 March 2024 
(23,458.26) 

26.00% 

19.49 

(6,099.15) 

36. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of unabsorbed business loss amounting on 31 March 2025. 
These unabsorbed business losses will espire over a period of eight years trom the end of respective reporting 
periods. 

6,099.15 

6,099.15 
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Neosky India Limited (CIN: U62100DL2021PLC386780) 
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

(All amount in Rs. Thousands, mless otherwise stated) 

38. Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Particulars 

() Principal amount renaining unpaid to0 any supplier as at the end of 
the accounting rear; 
(n) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of the account11g rear; 

(11) The amount of interest paid by the buver in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro, Small and Medim Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
along with the anount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
ajointed day; 
() The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 
(1) The amnount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
the accounting ear; 
(vi) the amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in 
the succeeding years, until such date when interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of 
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

For MRKS and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 023711N 

Kamal Ahuja 
Partner 

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such 
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by 
the auditors. 

ASSO 

(NEV DELHI) 

Membership No. 505788 

Place : New Delhi 

Date: 2O-S-2S 

39. There is neither any contingent iability nor any commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 
2024. 

ACcounte 

As at 
31 March 2025 

Manoj Goyal 
Director 
DIN-09840224 

4.08 

Place: New Delhi 

Sarath Chandra Gudlavalleti 
Chief Executive (Ofticer 

As at 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date: 2O-S-2S 

31 March 2024 

0.40 

Amit Jain 
Director 
DIN-06802414 
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